
Township of Haverford, Delaware County, Pennsylvania 

Request for Proposals (RFP) 

Additions to the Township Historic Resource Survey 

 

Following are responses to questions received regarding the Township of Haverford RFP for Additions to 

the Township Historic Resource Survey.   

 

1. On page 2 of the RFP, under “Consultant Qualifications,” it indicates that the selected consultant 

should meet/exceed the SOI’s Professional Qualification Standards for Archaeology and, of 

course, Historic Preservation. Is the involvement of an archaeologist required? If so, was there a 

particular vision or expectation for archaeology as part of this project? We certainly have 

archaeologists on staff that can assist, but much of this work appears to be best suited for 

architectural historians and historians. 

 

Response:   The involvement of an archaeologist will not be required.   

 

2. Exhibit 1, Project Description, B.1. – Does the township have a sample of a completed Survey 

Form in the township? 

 

Response: The Historic Resource Survey can be accessed here:  

http://havtwp.org/PDFs/Historical_Commission/HistoricResourseSurvey.pdf. 

Survey forms for this project should comply with current SHPO standards. 

 

3. Exhibit 1, Project Description, B.2. – “Gather at least one (1) digital photograph of the principal 

elevation of properties already included on the Township’s Historic Resource Inventory.  The 

Township will endeavor to photograph as many properties on the Inventory as is practicable and 

feasible but shall photograph no less than fifty (50) properties.” 

 

What does “gather” mean? Have these photographs been taken and made available to the 

consultant? Is the consultant to select the final ones for use? Or must the consultant visit the sites 

and take the photographs? NOTE: Under Work Products and Reporting, Item 2 states that the 

Township will provide digital copies of photographs, so we assume consultant will not do the 

actual photography. Please confirm. 

 

Response:  The Township will make photographs available to the Consultant for properties currently 

included in the Township’s Historic Resource Inventory. 

 

4. Please define the Township’s Historic Resource Inventory – is this the 147 properties in the 

current list or the 74 potential properties? Again, would the project involve visiting all of these 

properties? (We assume not if photographs have been previously taken.) 

 

Response: The Township’s Historic Resource Inventory is the current list of 147 properties.  The 

Consultant will not be required to visit all sites listed in the Inventory. 

 

5. Exhibit 1, Project Description, B.2. It states that the “Township will endeavor to photograph;” 

does that mean the Township or the consultant working for the township?  It appears that the 

project may involve the consultant taking the photographs, for a minimum of 50 properties. 

Again, please confirm. 

 

Response: See Response above. 

 

6. Exhibit 1, Project Description, B.2. Finally, should the work above be based on 50 properties? 74 

properties? 147 properties? (We assume 74 would be the optimal number, but please clarify.) 
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Response: See Response above. 

7 Exhibit 1, Project Description B.3. – “For all elements of this project, the Township will consult 

CRGIS to determine which resources may already be included in that database.  The Township or 

its consultant will create or update records for all documented resources directly into CRGIS 

using PA SHPO approved methods.  The PA SHPO will provide training to the individual 

designated to perform data entry.” 

a. We are confused whether you are expecting the Township or the consultant to “create or 

update records for all documented resources.” 

b. And if the consultant is to do this, does this mean for the minimum of 7 Survey Forms 

only, all 147 properties, the additional 74 properties, or the minimum of 50 involving 

photographs? 

c. Are there existing forms for all 147 properties? What is the extent of updating required? 

Response: The Consultant will create records for the minimum of 7 new Historic Resource Survey 

Forms required under the contract.  For the minimum of 50 photographs to be provided to 

the Consultant by the HTHC, the Consultant will either 1) upload photographs to existing 

CRGIS records, or 2) provide the SHPO with photographs (transmitted electronically) 

labeled with the appropriate key number.  In the case of either 1) or 2), the Consultant 

should assume 20 photographs (max.).  This is the extent of updating exiting Survey 

Forms that will be required. 

8. Work Products and Reporting:  We assume this section outlines the Township’s responsibilities 

to PA SHPO based on the consultant’s work. Please confirm. 

 

Response:  Yes. 

  

9. Regarding the minimum of 7 Survey Forms, will the consultant be able to visit these resources to 

photograph and examine the exteriors of these resources and settings? 

 

Response: The Consultant should assume typical access to private properties, which may be limited 

to access from public property. 

 

10. If photographs have already been obtained by the Township, does the township envision a 

“windshield” type survey of the 74 resources, or at least a number of these resources based on the 

consultant, working with the Township, to prioritize these resources? 

 

Response: Yes. 

 

11. Does the Township have any historic documentation of these resources that would help in the 

research? 

Response: There may be historical information on some resources.  The Haverford Historical 

Society liaison to the Haverford Township Historical Commission may assist the 

Consultant in identifying research sources. 

 


